
Minutes 

Bristol Select Board 

September 10, 2015 

Present:  Select Board members:  Janet Cote, Shaun Lagueux, Betsy Schneider, Rick Alpers, Paul 

Manganiello, and Town Administrator Michael Capone.   

The meeting was called to order at 6:01PM. 

Mr. Lagueux made a motion to approve the public minutes from August 24, 2015, seconded by Mr. 

Manganiello. With no further discussion, the Board voted 4-0-1 in favor of approving the minutes. 

Consent agenda: Mr. Lagueux made a motion to approve the consent agenda dated September 10, 2015 

to include the items named therein, seconded by Mr. Alpers.  Mr. Manganiello asked if the fire truck 

payment is the last payment.  Mr. Capone replied that it should be the last and that he will confirm this.  

Mr. Manganiello asked about an expense for pizza under the PD Investigations line.  Mrs. Cote replied 

that the Police Chief fed the crew of police on the day of the Rite Aid incident. Mr. Capone commented 

that it is always good to check directly with the Chief with questions like this. As there were no further 

questions, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the consent agenda.  

Senator Jeanne Forrester: 

Mrs. Cote welcomed Senator Forrester. 

Senator Forrester stated that she likes to touch base at least once a year with Towns to let them know 

what is going on in Concord.   

Senator Forrester informed the Board that the budget was vetoed and that the State is now operating 

on a continuing resolution.  The state is currently working with fiscal year 2015 numbers.  The Fiscal 

Committee meets once a month to deal with emergency issues and making sure no one is losing a job 

and no programs are closed. The state operates on a biannual budget.  The proposed budget did provide 

business tax cuts and it seems that the Governor may have issues with this.  Health and  Human Services 

asked for $20 million more in funding to help pay for some bills. The Governor rejected this in her 

budget. The Senate came up with a surplus statement and it appears the Governor may need that 

money to balance 2015 as there are some spending issues.  Talks with the Governor will continue on the 

16th with the start of a new session.  The state has been working with DRA to be certain that the budget 

discussion does not impact the ability of the towns to set their tax rates. 

Mr. Simard asked Senator Forrester about a new accounting practice to show unfunded balances on 

retirement accounts and if there is any impact on the Town’s budget or if it is just a number that has to 

be presented.  Senator Forrester replied that this is brand new and has never been mentioned as an 

issue. Mr. Capone commented that it is a reporting requirement and doesn’t carry against the budget. 

The Town Auditors presented this information to the Board last month.  



Mrs. Cote asked about updates on Northern Pass.  Senator Forrester replied that their latest proposal 

included burying 52 more miles of the line at the same price.  Five of the towns in District 2 are still 

being affected. Senator Forrester is asking Select Boards to write letters stating their opposition to the 

Northern Pass project.  The Senate president gave support to the project and this was disappointing.  

The next step is to hold hearings. Senator Forrester stated that she believes that if people continue to 

oppose it in a productive and respectful way they will come to the table and bury the lines.  Senator 

Forrester stated that her compromise is to bury it all the way and she will be good with the project.  Mr. 

Alpers commented that the Board will offer a  letter in opposition of the project.  Senator Forrester 

commented that there are still areas where they have to go over private property and the Senate 

Committee has already said that they will not do eminent domain. 

Senator Forrester commented that a document that the LBA did for towns on the education funding 

started with the Dover lawsuit. The solution that came through the Senate was more hurtful to towns by 

raising a cap on students and a stabilization grant. Assuming that the budget goes through, Bristol will 

lose about $11,000 in regards to this. 

Mr. Lukeman asked why Bristol has to subsidize other towns in the district.  Senator Forrester replied 

that other towns have exceeded the cap.  Mrs. Cote commented that it goes by a student formula based 

on daily population of students per town. Mr. Alpers commented that based on this average daily 

population Bristol pays more as it has more students. 

Mr. Alpers stated that Bristol is still continuing with plans to create a multi -use trail from downtown all 

the way to Profile Falls and asked about the possibility of federal money.  Senator Forrester replied that 

the recreation issue keeps coming up in towns.  Mr. Lagueux commented that it would be nice to have 

more grant opportunities. 

The Board thanked Senator Jeanne Forrester for her time. 

Mark Bucklin- Updates: 

Mr. Bucklin informed that Board that he has a purchase order for winter sand.  A formal bid process was 

undertaken to solicit bids from companies for winter sand.  Mr. Bucklin is recommending a local 

contractor because of travel times and efficiency, even though the cost is a little higher.  Mr. 

Manganiello asked if this is just for the cost of sand or if transportation costs are included.  Mr. Bucklin 

replied that it is just sand and the transporting is the Town’s responsibility. Mr. Lagueux made a motion 

to accept purchase order #003656 for winter sand through JP Morrison Construction Inc. in the amount 

of $10,500 for 15 cubic yards at $7 per yard. The motion was seconded by Mr. Manganiello. The Board 

voted 5-0 in favor of the motion. 

Mr. Bucklin updated the Board on High Street.  Things are moving along and the top coat will be done in 

two weeks. 

Mr. Capone informed the Board that he spoke with Ken Braley regarding the retaining wall. The cost is 

$9,000 and will come out of the paving line. 



Mr. Capone thanked Mark Bucklin and the Highway crew for helping out Jeff Chartier locate a water leak 

on Fourth Street that is now fixed. 

Mr. Capone asked Mr. Bucklin about correspondence he had received with regard to an issue brought 

up by the Grand View Condo Association.  Mr. Bucklin commented that this is on a Town road off West 

Shore Road. The driveway involved has a problem with runoff from the road. Mr. Bucklin did speak with 

the owner and will meet with him in person to see what can be done.  

Mr. Alpers asked about the depth of the probing at the Mica Building and if it was only 18 inches.  Mr. 

Bucklin replied that he could only push the probe down that far.  Mr. Manganiello asked if the two 

parties have met. Mr. Capone relied that the depth has to be determined to decide what to do. There 

needs to be six feet to bury the tanks. The conversation will have to be continued. 

Purchasing Policy Review: 

Mr. Capone informed the Board that he made the changes that the Board discussed on August 24th.  Mr. 

Lagueux made a motion to approve the Purchasing Policy as amended, seconded by Mr. Alpers.  The 

Board voted 5-0 to approve the motion. 

LCHIP Land Trust Standards and Practices: 

Mr. Capone commented that once the Town is done with the LCHIP grant for the Old Town Hall the 

Board will have to sign a stewardship agreement. Part of this agreement is the Board has to adopt land 

trust standards. Mr. Alpers made a motion to adopt the Land Trust Standards and Practices as written, 

seconded by Mr. Lagueux. The Board voted 5-0 to approve the motion. 

Budget Season Discussion: 

Mrs. Cote suggested that discussions on the 2016 budget be added to agendas to discuss the goals for 

Department Heads as has been done in the past. Mr. Capone commented that he has provided current 

2015 budget information to the Select Board and the Budget Committee.  Draft budgets are due from 

the Department Heads by November 20th. The joint budget meeting with the Budget Committee, Select 

Board, and Department Heads is December 5th. Mrs. Cote asked the Board if they wanted to schedule 

work sessions or just time during regular Board meetings to discuss the budget. Mr. Lagueux 

commented that it is too early for work sessions as it is too early to discuss line by line. Mr. Alpers 

commented that he would like to have CIP numbers first.  The only warrant article he feels the Board 

will put forward, outside of CIP and Department Head requests, is an article regarding a bigger fireworks 

show at the lake next year. Mrs. Cote suggested that these items get marked down as they are discussed 

so they don’t fall through the cracks.  Mrs. Cote commented that it will be helpful to Department Heads 

if the Board presents its goals to them before their budgets are due.   

Mr. Capone commented that he had a conversation with RS Fireworks about a show at the lake.  They 

said that the barge for a previous show was too small.  Mr. Capone has talked with other towns that use 

barges for their fireworks and these shows are all privately funded.  Mr. Alpers suggested that the Town 



could speak to the folks at Camp Mayhew about using their beach.   Mr. Manganiello commented that a 

fireworks warrant article should have a revenue item with it. 

Mr. Capone commented that he will have updated wage and salary range information available for the 

Board soon.  He wants to review the information with the Department heads first.  Mr. Alpers 

commented that the merit program went well this year and that he supports a 3%-2.5% increase. Mr. 

Manganiello commented that this number will be offset by the 27th pay period as the Town does not 

have that this year. Ms. Schneider asked if any of the remaining merit wage money went into Accrued 

Wages.  Mr. Capone replied that Melanie Shokal has run the numbers and want to check them again 

before distributing them to the wage lines.  The remaining funds from the merit increase line will 

ultimately go to the accrued benefits reserve.  The remaining money can go into the fund balance and 

then the warrant article can be used to move it into Accrued Wages.  

Town Administrator’s Report:  

Mr. Capone informed the Board that there is a scheduling conflict for the meeting on the 24th. The Board 

agreed to meet on September 21st instead.  

A draft of the business checklist is being circulated.  It has been sent to Committees and Department 

Heads for their suggestions.  The Board will look at the final checklist draft at the second October Board 

meeting.  

The project to make improvements to route 104 east of Central Square submitted by the Town to the 

Lakes Region Planning Commission has been included in the draft ten year road plan for the State.  The 

proposed project includes improvements to roadways and sidewalks on Route104. Mr. Alpers asked if 

the Board should send a letter in support.  Mr. Capone replied that he is already working with Lakes 

Region Planning Commission on this.  The project is expected to start in 2025.  Mr. Manganiello asked if 

the project involves eminent domain.  Mr. Capone replied that it does include some right of way issues. 

There was an errant sentence in the Pawnbrokers ordinance.  The sentence has been removed from the 

ordinance and a clean copy had been provided to the Board. The date was changed so the Board needs 

to revote.  Mr. Lagueux made a motion to adopt the Secondhand Dealer/Pawnbroker Ordinance as 

amended, seconded by Mr. Alpers. The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the motion. 

Mr. Capone and Jeff Chartier are meeting with Freudenberg to discuss increasing the industrial water 

rates. 

Mr. Capone noted that Melanie Shokal has developed a Records Retention policy to adopt for the 

formation of a formal Record Retention Committee. 

The Town Clerk/ Tax Collector will be implementing the One Check process for registrations. This will be 

discussed at the next Board meeting in more detail. 



The New Hampton School community service projects will take place in September and October. Mr. 

Capone suggest some work to be done at Kelley Park and the playground area and to continue work on 

the dugouts and concession stand.  

An email was received from Lucille Keegan asking for permission for the Events Committee to hold a 

scarecrow decorating contest in the common.  The Board was fine with using the common for that 

purpose. 

The Triathalon is on September 26th and 27th. 

Lakes Region Planning Commission is holding a commissioners meeting on November 30th at the Minot-

Sleeper Library meeting room at 6:00pm. The discussion will include microcell communication 

technology. There is grant money for projects like this. 

Public Service Announcement: there has been a report of swimmers itch at Avery-Crouse Beach. A fact 

sheet will be on the town web site. 

Select Board Items:   

Mr. Alpers congratulated the Old Home Day Committee for a pretty impressive event. 

Mr. Alpers commends the Police Department for the handling of the most recent event at Rite Aid and 

the impressive work that was done to resolve the issue so quickly. 

Mr. Alpers commented that the downtown looks great thanks to the work of the Decorating Committee. 

Mr. Manganiello attended the recent Planning Board meeting.  Maryann Parkhurst was in for her site 

plan review but it was deemed incomplete as there were a few missing pieces.  The Dollar General 

checklist was approved and the subdivision was approved. The next step is a site plan. 

Ms. Schneider commented that Sandra Heaney mentioned that the Historic District Commission should 

be more involved with the 79-E application process.   

Ms. Schneider commented that at the August meeting she signed to authorize the town treasurer to 

transfer money in the Police Department revolving fund in the amount of $56,776 and transfer out 

$24,669 to pay for employees of outside details. Ms. Schneider felt that the number was too large for a 

32 week period and asked Melanie Shokal what the number equates to.  Melanie replied that there are 

monies from 2014 that were paid out in 2015 for details performed in 2014.  Ms. Schneider doesn’t 

know if the intent of the warrant article was to pay the fund with details from 2014. Mrs. Cote 

commented that she also talked with Ms. Shokal.  Ms. Shokal ran the warrant article past the auditors  

and she has a statement that states all revenues from police details will be deposited into the fund. The 

money was received in 2015 so it was deposited into the fund. The total is approximately $23,000.  Mrs. 

Cote commented that Ms. Schneider is saying that the warrant article intent was to start the fund with 

the seed money approved in 2015. The Board can decide if the 2014 money should go to the general 

fund. Mrs. Cote commented that the article doesn’t say any particular year of otherwise. Ms. Schneider 



commented that if the intent of the article was to use all monies why did the seed money get put in if 

we knew the 2014 money was coming in.  

Ms. Schneider made a motion to remove the money from the revolving fund for police details 

performed in 2014 and to put the money in the general fund in 2015, seconded by Mr. Manganiello. 

Mr. Manganiello asked how the officers were paid for details in 2014.  Mrs. Cote replied that there was 

a line item for this in 2014 and that there is a different process this year with the warrant article.  Mr. 

Lagueux commented that he sees no reason to go back and do this. Mr. Manganiello disagrees as the 

funding from 2014 should be a part of 2014 and it should go to the fund balance. Ms. Schneider agreed 

that it should go into the general fund as it is taxpayers’ money.  Mr. Alpers replied that it is always the 

taxpayers’ money and that there was no malice involved here. Mrs. Cote commented that if it is in a 

revolving account it will not be considered towards adjusting the tax rate. Mr. Capone commented that 

this is more of a timing issue and that the auditors make the call on the cutoff date.  Mrs. Cote 

commented that consistency is the key to this process. Ms. Schneider commented that the $5,000 seed 

money was not needed to start the fund if the 2014 money was coming in. Mr. Manganiello asked what 

the process would be to take the seed money out. Mrs. Cote replied that can’t do that without another 

warrant article.  The process will move forward and at the end of the year 80% of the fund will be left in 

there and 20% will go to the general fund. The auditors agree that good accounting standards are being 

met now. Mr. Alpers commented that he would like a recommendation from Patrick on the past practice 

over the last 3-5 years. Ms. Schneider commented that she has no problem finding out from Council 

what the practice has been.  Ms. Schneider withdrew her motion and Mr. Manganiello withdrew his 

second.  

Mrs. Cote commented that since the contingency fund is not a good funding source for a space needs  

study, the issue still needs to be moved forward.  Mrs. Cote suggests that the Board put together a 

warrant article for Town Meeting to move the space needs forward.  Mrs. Cote suggested a sub-

committee be started to work on this and to provide new data as the current data is from 2006.  Mr. 

Alpers commented that he doesn’t see the need for a committee and that the Board should bid out an 

RFP for an architectural firm to prepare something for a warrant article for a contract contingent upon 

Town approval.  Mrs. Cote replied that there is still a need for updated data.  Mr. Alpers replied that the 

architects are the experts who specialize in these facilities. The Board all agreed on the current site for a 

facility.  Ms. Schneider commented that the space needs is important for the architects to look at to 

decide on a facility.  Mr. Alpers replied that the architects will lead the Board through fact finding and 

make recommendations.   

Mrs. Cote commented that the Board needs to address the Police Department deficiencies and the 

Town office issues moving forward. Mr. Alpers suggested that the Police Chief come in and tell what he 

needs and why.  Mr. Manganiello commented that at a minimum there needs to be a line item 

appropriation to get started. Mr. Lagueux commented that it is too late to start the process all over 

again and as the Board agrees on the current site to just get a bid and have a plan. In the meantime the 

current facility has a broken toilet, broken doors, moldy rugs, and a cell that can’t be used. The Town is 

spending more on overtime because of our facility.  Mr. Manganiello commented that what will pass 



Town Meeting is a warrant article that puts money aside for a space needs study. Mr. Alpers 

commented that would just put the project off for another year.  

Mrs. Cote suggested a discussion about an RFP and a discussion with Chief Lewis. This will be included 

on the agenda for the next meeting.  

Public Comment:   

Barbara Greenwood commented that there was an evaluation meeting regarding Old Home Day.  There 

needs to be more signage downtown next year.  Mr. Lagueux commented that he like the layout this 

year with putting the kids in the center of things.  Mrs. Greenwood commented that the Events 

Committee has two new volunteers.  The concerts were well attended and there were only two that had 

to be held indoors because of inclement weather. The conditions at Kelley Park have been beautiful and 

people appreciate the work done there.  Mrs. Greenwood commented that she has talked to people this 

summer about the police station and there is lots of support but people need information.  Mrs. 

Greenwood visited that New Hampton facility to get a better idea of what a modern police facility looks 

like. She suggests more people do this.  

Garlyn Manganiello thanked the Town and Michael Capone for helping to get the Triathlon back to the 

area.  Run Your Buns Off had one of the best runs ever with 325 registered racers and walkers. The two 

beneficiaries are Voices Against Violence and Audubon Center in Hebron. Officer Travis Austin was 

awesome and super friendly during the event. 

Margaret Hoyle asked if there is anything planned for 9/11. The meeting at the Water/Sewer 

department had not so good acoustics with the AC running. There was no safety light leaving the 

building. Ms. Hoyle asked for clarification on these items: has there been an appraisal done on the Smith 

property, is there an update on the failing trees downtown, and what is the final number on the 

downtown project.  

Mr. Capone replied that he has spoken to Mike Vignale regarding the trees and the original  contractors 

have been contacted regarding this issue to see if they have a suggested alternative for consideration. 

There is nothing new on the Smith Property.  

There are remaining reimbursements due from the State for the project.  Mr. Capone and Mr. Vignale 

will be meeting with NHDOT on Tuesday to review the project numbers and clarify the issue for them. 

The auditors reviewed the project numbers and agreed with them.  We expect that NHDOT will be able 

to process the remaining reimbursements within the next month. 

The light sensor is broken at the Water/Sewer facility and Jeff will be contacted regarding this. 

John Sellers expressed concern over the employees’ health benefits being aligned with the Affordable 

Care Act. Mr. Alpers replied that the Town is below the Cadillac plan and the Town is not getting 

penalized. 



Mr. Sellers commented that the Town web site is not up to date as the agenda for tonight was not 

posted.  Mr. Capone explained that the agenda was mistakenly not forwarded to Ray.  

Mr. Sellers thanked the employees who are working on the business checklist. 

Mr. Sellers suggested a few cameras be placed in downtown due to some recent incidents with spills.  

Mr. Alpers replied that there is no policy to enforce anything even if there were cameras and that it is a 

State road.  

Mr. Sellers commented that the transmission lines should be buried, the minutes of Town Meeting 

should be looked at regarding the revolving fund and that a maintenance fund could fix the broken toilet 

at the police station. 

Paul Simard commented that the taxpayers should be reimbursed for the money put out in 2014 as part 

of the outside details.  Mr. Simard commented that he needs to know if the size of the police station is 

appropriate and is the department run efficiently. He would like to see a third party come to evaluate 

the department.  Mr. Simard asked to see crime figures as he hasn’t seen any in 3-5 years.  

With no other business to come before the Board, at 8:49PM Mr. Alpers made a motion to go into non-

public session under RSA 91-A:3 (c), seconded by Mr. Lagueux.  A roll call vote was held. The motion 

carried by a vote of 5-0. 

At 9:35PM, Mr. Lagueux made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The 

Board voted 5-0 in favor of adjournment. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Wendy Costigan 

____________________________        ____________________________ 

Janet Cote, Chair                  Shaun Lagueux, Vice Chair 

 

____________________________         ____________________________    

Paul Manganiello, Select Board                    Betsy Schneider, Select Board 

 

_____________________________ 

Rick Alpers, Select Board 

 

 

 

 


